
PRAJ HIPURITY SYSTEMS LIMITED
Balance sheet as at 31st March ,2024
(Amounts in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stated) `

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 159.338                             165.345                             
Right-of-Use assets 3 24.742                               26.342                               
Capital work-in-progress 3A 5.847                                 2.769                                 
Intangible assets 3 0.118                                 0.766                                 
Financial assets
   Other 4 7.530                                 33.232                               
Deferred tax assets (net) 26 23.156                               22.000                               
Other non-current assets 5 0.873                                 0.267                                 

Total non-current assets 221.604                             250.721                             

Current assets
Inventories 6                              492.301                              360.699 
Financial assets
   Trade receivables 8 940.942                             654.875                             
   Cash and cash equivalents 9                              181.697                              238.346 
   Other Bank Balance 10                                        -                                          -   
   Other Current Financial Assets 11                                14.738                                  9.462 
Current tax asset (net)                                        -                                          -   
Other current assets 5                                81.612                                92.030 

Total current assets                           1,711.290                           1,355.412 

Total assets                           1,932.894                           1,606.133 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
Equity share capital 12                                50.000                                50.000 
Other equity 13                              775.705                              804.592 

Total equity                              825.705                              854.592 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
   Lease Liabilities                                13.214                                18.138 
Provisions 14                                16.429                                14.457 
   Other financial liabilities 16                                  0.500                                  0.400 

Total non-current liabilities                                30.143                                32.995 

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
  Lease Liabilities                                15.135                                11.732 
   Trade payables 15
(i) Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSMED) 146.656                             117.193                             
(ii) Total outstanding dues to other than micro enterprises and small enterprises                              539.825                              263.354 
   Other financial liabilities 16                                53.793                                27.343 
Other current liabilities 17                              288.013                              259.897 
Provisions 14                                31.222                                20.782 
Current tax liabilities (net)                                  2.402                                18.245 

Total  current liabilities                           1,077.046                              718.546 

Total liabilities                           1,107.189                              751.541 

Total equity and liabilities                           1,932.894                           1,606.133 

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For P G BHAGWAT LLP                      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants                                PRAJ HIPURITY SYSTEMS LIMITED
FRN: 101118W/ W100682

Shriniwas Gadgil                                                   Dr. Pramod Chaudhari                                     Mihir Mehta                                     Shishir Joshipura            
(Partner)                                                                               (Chairman)                                          (Whole time Director)                                   (Director)                 
M. No. 120570                                                                  DIN: 00196415                                          DIN: 09736913                                    DIN: 00574970                
Place : Pune
Date : 28th May, 2024

             Sd/-                                                                                Sd/-                                                            Sd/-                                                         Sd/-            

 31st Mar 2023 Particulars Note No.  31st Mar 2024 



PRAJ HIPURITY SYSTEMS LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended 31st March 2024
(Amounts in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Income
Revenue from operations 18 3,021.662                          2,424.476                         
Other income 19 11.244                               10.066                              
Total income 3,032.906                          2,434.542                         

Expenses 
Cost of  materials consumed 20 1,927.071                          1,363.537                         
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 21 -67.117                             67.617                              
Employee benefits expense 22 284.055                             226.649                            
Finance costs 23 8.459                                 7.472                                
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 34.213                               32.913                              
Other expenses 24 539.474                             507.973                            
Total expense 2,726.155                          2,206.161                         

Profit before exceptional items and tax 306.751                             228.381                            
Exceptional items -                                    -                                    
Profit before tax 306.751                             228.381                            
Tax expenses 26
Current tax 75.123                               64.700                              
Deferred tax -1.157                               -5.638                               
(Excess) / Short Provision of Earlier Year 1.635                                 -0.290                               
Total tax expense 75.601                               58.772                              

Profit for the period 231.150                             169.609                            

Other comprehensive income 
   Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 25 -10.038                             -0.053                               

   Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total comprehensive income for the period (comprising profit (loss) and other comprehensive 
income for the period)

221.112                             169.556                            

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued and continuing operations)

(1) Basic                                46.230                               33.922 
(2) Diluted                                46.230                               33.922 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For P G BHAGWAT LLP                      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants                                PRAJ HIPURITY SYSTEMS LIMITED
FRN: 101118W/ W100682

Shriniwas Gadgil                                                   Dr. Pramod Chaudhari                                     Mihir Mehta                                Shishir Joshipura            
(Partner)                                                                          (Chairman)                                          (Whole time Director)                                (Director)                 

M. No. 120570                                                               DIN: 00196415                                          DIN: 09736913                                DIN: 00574970                

Place : Pune

Date : 28th May,2024

             Sd/-                                                                                Sd/-                                                            Sd/-                                                    Sd/-            

31st Mar 202331st Mar 2024Particulars Note No.



 
PRAJ HIPURITY SYSTEMS LIMITED
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(Amounts in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

31 MAR 2024 31 MAR 2023

A.
306.751                                        228.383                                        

0.475                                            1.577                                            
-                                               6.404                                            

Net Gain on termination of lease -                                               -                                               
34.213                                          32.913                                          

Sundry balances written back -0.000                                          -0.431                                          
Sundry balances written off 0.992                                            0.125                                            
Provision for doubtful debts 1.236                                            22.997                                          

-6.674                                          -7.939                                          
8.459                                            2.756                                            

345.452                                        286.785                                        

-287.302                                      -32.859                                        
-131.602                                      41.594                                          

25.702                                          -27.160                                        
-0.606                                          6.316                                            
4.980                                            2.021                                            

-                                               -25.921                                        
305.931                                        -28.681                                        

26.550                                          2.685                                            
Increase/(decrease) in other lease liabilities -                                               -                                               
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 25.997                                          -30.777                                        

2.373                                            -0.778                                          
317.475                                        193.225                                        

-92.593                                        -46.227                                        
224.882                                        146.998                                        

B.
-18.553                                        -11.908                                        

1.153                                            -                                               
-                                               7.939                                            

Investment in Fixed Deposit 6.674                                            -                                               
-10.725                                        -3.969                                          

C.
-                                               -                                               

Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) -250.00                                        -200.00                                        
-4.244                                          -                                               

Payment of Interest of  Lease Liabilities -2.927                                          -1.773                                          
Payment of Principal of  Lease Liabilities -13.633                                        -12.959                                        

-270.804                                      -214.732                                      

-56.647                                        -71.702                                        

238.346                                        310.048                                        
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent -                                               -                                               

181.697                                        238.346                                        
Notes:
The statement of cash flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect method' as set out in Ind AS 7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Cash Flow Statement

As per our report of even date attached
For P G BHAGWAT LLP                                                                              For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants                                                                                         PRAJ HIPURITY SYSTEMS LIMITED
FRN: 101118W/ W100682

             Sd/-                                                         Sd/-                                                              Sd/-                                                    Sd/-              
Shriniwas Gadgil                                  Dr.Pramod Chaudhari                                     Mihir Mehta                                Shishir Joshipura              
(Partner)                                                             (Chairman)                                      (Whole time Director)                               (Director)             
M. No. 120570                                               DIN: 00196415                                        DIN: 09736913                                  DIN: 00574970    
Place : Pune
Date : 28th May,2024

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 

Adjustments 

(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss (net)

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest earned

(Increase)/decrease in other assets

Interest charged
Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital
(Increase) /decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in other non current financial assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received on investments

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work-in-
progress and intangibles under development)

Cash generated from operations

(Increase)/decrease in other current financial assets

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other current financial liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Direct taxes paid (including taxes deducted at source), net of refunds
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash flow from investing activities

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets

NET CASH FROM / (USED) IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash flow from financing activities 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 9)

Interest expense

Repayment of short term borrowings (net)

NET CASH FROM / (USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 9)



Praj HiPurity Systems Limited 
 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated) 
 

 
 
 

1 The Company overview 
 
Praj HiPurity Systems Limited (the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company’s registered office is 
Unit 1604, DLH Park, S V Road, Near MTNL Signal, Goregaon West, Mumbai-400104, 
Maharashtra, India. 
 
The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, installing and commissioning of water 
purification systems used for Food, Pharma and Beverage Industries, undertake contracts / sub 
contracts of Turnkey Projects. 

 
2 Significant accounting policies 

 
Basis of preparation of financial statements 
 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 3 of 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 
  
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th May, 2024 
 
2.1 Basis of measurement 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the certain for 
the following items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date. 
 
Items Measurement basis 
  
Derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
 

Fair value 

Non-derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss 
 

Fair value 

Defined benefit plan assets Fair value 
  
 
2.2 Functional and presentation currency 
 
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional 
currency. All financial information is presented in INR rounded to the nearest million with three 
decimal, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated.    
 
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions  

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, current 
assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities and disclosure of the contingent 
liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s 
best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates 



Praj HiPurity Systems Limited 
 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
In Indian Rupees million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated 
 
could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying value of assets or 
liabilities in future periods.   
 
 
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or 
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and 
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.  
 
Critical estimates and judgements  
 
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:  

1. Estimation of defined benefit obligation – Refer note 35 
2. Impairment of financial assets – Refer note 37 

Current versus non-current classification 
 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification.  
 
An asset as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle  
• Held primarily for the purpose of   trading 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period  
All other assets are classified as non-current.   

 
A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or  
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for a t least twelve 

months after the reporting period 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
 
Estimates and assumptions 
 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. 
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to 
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes 
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 
 
 
 



Praj HiPurity Systems Limited 
 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
In Indian Rupees million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated 
 
 
Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits) 
 
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are 
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions 
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the 
discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the 
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.  
 
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount 
rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in 
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.  
 
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables which tend to change only at interval 
in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on 
expected future inflation rates. 
 
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note No. 35 
 
Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation 
techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken 
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is 
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, 
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair 
value of financial instruments. Note 36 for further disclosures. 
 
Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue is recognised when performance obligation is satisfied by transferring promised goods or 
services and to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account 
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 
government.  
Goods & services tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Accordingly, it 
is excluded from revenue. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Praj HiPurity Systems Limited 
 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
In Indian Rupees million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated 
 
 Product & Project sales 

Revenue from sale of project & goods in the course of ordinary activities is recognised when 
property in the project or goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are 
transferred to the customer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the 
consideration that will be derived from the sale of the project or goods and regarding its collection. 
The amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of goods and services tax (GST), and is net of 
returns, trade discounts and quantity discounts. 
 

 Service revenue 
Revenue from services is recognised as the related services are performed. 

 
 Other income  

Export benefits in the form of Duty Draw Back / Focus Market Scheme (FMS) / Focus Product 
Scheme (FPS) claims are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on receipt basis. 
Other income comprises of interest income, net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss, foreign currency gain on financial assets and liabilities. 
Interest income is recognised as it accrues in the Statement of Profit and Loss, using the effective 
interest method (EIR).  

 
Finance costs 
 
Finance costs comprise of interest expense on borrowings and net interest cost on net defined benefit 
obligations. Interest expenditure is recognised as it accrues in the Statement of Profit and Loss, using 
the effective interest method. 
 
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 
 
 Recognition and measurement 

 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition or construction less 
accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of an item of 
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-
refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the 
purchase price. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset are 
capitalised as part of the cost. 
 
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
 
Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. 
 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each 
reporting date are disclosed under “Other non-current assets”. 

 
 Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the 
part will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and 
equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 



Praj HiPurity Systems Limited 
 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
In Indian Rupees million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated 
 
 
 Disposal 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant 
and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount 
of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other income/expenses in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.  
 

 Depreciation 
Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other 
amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Depreciation is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of 
property, plant and equipment as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, as 
assessed by the management of the company based on technical evaluation. Freehold land is not 
depreciated. 
 
The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of 
the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the company will obtain 
ownership by the end of the lease term. 
 
The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and 
comparative periods are as follows: 
 
 

Asset  Useful life 
(in years) 

Buildings  30 
Plant and machinery  5-15 
Computers and office equipment  3-5 
Vehicles  8 
Furniture and fixtures  10 

 
Residual value is estimated as zero. 
 
 

Intangible assets and amortisation 
 
 Recognition and measurement 

Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the 
Company, it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset  
will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.  
Intangible assets acquired by the Company that have fini te useful lives are measured at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.  Intangible assets with 
indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either 
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. 
 
 
 
 



Praj HiPurity Systems Limited 
 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
In Indian Rupees million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated 
 
 
 Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.  

 
 
 Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less 
its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a Written 
down Value basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets  from the date that they 
are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of 
the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.  

 
 

The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:  
 

Asset  Useful life 
(in years) 

Technical know-how 5-10 year 
Software 3 Year 

 
Investment property 
 
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, investment property is  stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. 
 
The cost of investment property includes its purchase price and any directly attributable 
expenditure.  
 
Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed off or when they are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. 
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognised in the statement profit and loss in the period of derecognition.  
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
The Company periodically assesses, using external and internal sources, whether there is an 
indication that an asset may be impaired. Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying value 
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset’s net 
selling price and value in use. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together 
into the smallest group of assets (cash generating unit or CGU) that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.  
 
Intangible assets which are not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually. Other 
non-financial assets (tangible and intangible) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if 
there is any indication of impairment. For assets in respect of which any such indication exists 
and for intangible assets mandatorily tested annually for impairment, the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated.  



Praj HiPurity Systems Limited 
 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
In Indian Rupees million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated 
 
 
If at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer  
exists or has decreased, the assets or CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated. For assets other 
than goodwill, the impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Such a reversal is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 
 
 
Inventories 
 
Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable 
value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not 
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are 
expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials, components and stores and spares 
is determined on a weighted average basis. 
 
Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost 
includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on 
normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty and is determined on a 
weighted average basis. 
 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
 
Foreign currency transactions and balances 
 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of 
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the 
year are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year. 
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as at the 
year-end are translated at the year-end closing exchange rates and the resultant exchange 
differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in terms 
of historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  
 
 
 Leases 

Lease is a contract that provides to the customer (lessee) the right to use an asset for a period of time 
in exchange for consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Praj HiPurity Systems Limited 
 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
In Indian Rupees million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated 
 
Company as a Lessee 
 
A lessee is required to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases and to recognise depreciation 
of leased assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the statement of Profit and Loss. 
The Company uses the practical expedient to apply the requirements of this standard to a 
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics if the effects on the financial statements of 
applying to the portfolio does not differ materially from applying the requirement to the 
individual leases within that portfolio. 
 
However according to Ind AS 116, for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (short-term 
leases) and for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, not to recognize a right -of-
use asset and a lease liability. The Company applies both recognition exemptions. The lease 
payments associated with those leases are generally recognized as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term or another systematic basis if appropriate.  
 
Right to use asset 
 
Right-of-use assets, which are included under property, plant and equipment, are measured at 
cost less any accumulated depreciation and, if necessary, any accumulated impairment. T he cost 
of a right-of-use asset comprises the present value of the outstanding lease payments plus any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, any 
initial direct costs and an estimate of costs to be incurred in dismantling or removing the 
underlying asset. In this context, the Company also applies the practical expedient that the 
payments for non-lease components are generally recognized as lease payments. If the lease 
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee at the end of the lease term or if the cost 
of the right-of-use asset reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the right -of-use 
asset is depreciated to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the right-of-
use asset is depreciated to the end of the lease term. 
 
Lease liability 
 
Lease liabilities, which are assigned to financing liabilities, are measured initially at the presen t 
value of the lease payments. Subsequent measurement of a lease liability includes the increase of 
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the carrying amount to 
reflect the lease payments made. 
 
Company as a Lessor 
 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an 
operating lease, the asset is capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated over 
its useful economic life. Payments received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement 
of profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
In Indian Rupees million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated 
 
Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
 
Critical judgements required in the application of Ind AS 116 may include, among others, the 
following: 

 Identifying whether a contract (or part of a contract) includes a lease;  
 Determining whether it is reasonably certain that an extension or termination option will 

be exercised; 
 Classification of lease agreements (when the entity is a lessor); 
 Determination of whether variable payments are in-substance fixed; 
 Establishing whether there are multiple leases in an arrangement;  
 Determining the stand-alone selling prices of lease and non-lease components. 

 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty in the application of Ind AS 116 may include, among 
others, the following: 

 Estimation of the lease term; 
 Determination of the appropriate rate to discount the lease payments;  
 Assessment of whether a right-of-use asset is impaired. 

 
 
Employee benefits 
 
a) Short term employee benefits 
 
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short 
term employee benefits and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related 
service. 

 
b)    Post-employment benefits (defined benefit plans) 
 
The employees’ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation 
under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected 
Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of 
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.  
 
The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount 
rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is 
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having 
maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations. 
 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on 
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are 
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to 
profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
 
In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan’s assets is reduced from the gross obligation 
under the defined benefit plans, to recognize the obligation on net basis. 
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Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized when 
the curtailment or settlement occurs. Past service cost is recognized as expenses on a straight -
line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. Net interest is calculated by 
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.  

 
c) Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plans) 
 
Contributions to the provident fund and superannuation fund, which are defined contribution schemes, 
are recognised as an expense in the Profit and loss account in the period in which the contribution is 
due. 
 

 
d) Long term employee benefits 
 
Long term employee benefits comprise of compensated absences and other employee incentives.  
These are measured based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at each 
Balance sheet date unless they are insignificant.  Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs are 
recognised immediately in the Profit and loss account.   
 
Termination benefits 
 
Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of 
those benefits and when the group recognises costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected to 
be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted. 
 
Provisions and Contingencies 
 
A Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation, in 
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.   
 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting 
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.  
 
Contingent liability is disclosed in case of  

(a)  present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation.  

(b) present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible 
(c) a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of 

resources is not remote. 
Contingent assets are neither recognized, nor disclosed. 
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.  
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Taxes 
 
a) Current income tax 
 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted. 
 
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside 
profit or loss. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying tra nsaction 
either in OCI or directly in equity.  
 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as 
current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that 
there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified 
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in 
which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and 
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset 
at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have 
convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. 

 
b) Deferred taxes 
 
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at 
the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:  
 
 When the deferred tax liability arises from the initia l recognition of goodwill or an asset or 

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or   loss  

 
 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments  in subsidiaries, 

associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differ ences will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future 

 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward 
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 
utilised, except: 
 
 When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary di fference arises from the 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination 
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit 
or loss 
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re -
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting   date. 
 
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in 
OCI or directly in equity. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to  
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 
 
In the situations where the company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 
enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no 
deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences which reverse 
during the tax holiday period, to the extent the company’s gross total income is subject to the 
deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which 
reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the timing differences 
originate. However, the company restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it 
has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For 
recognition of deferred taxes, the timing differences which originate first are considered to 
reverse first. 
 
Cash and short-term deposits 
 
Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and 
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
Fair value measurement 
 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Quoted market prices, when 
available, are used as the measure of fair value. In cases where quoted market prices are not 
available, fair values are determined using present value estimates or other valuation 
techniques, for example, the present value of estimated expected future cash flows using 
discount rates commensurate with the risks involved. Fair value estimation techniques normally 
incorporate assumptions that market participants would use in their estimates of values, future 
revenues, and future expenses, including assumptions about interest rates, default, prepayment 
and volatility. Because assumptions are inherently subjective in nature, the estimated fair 
values cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent market quotes and, in many cases, 
the estimated fair values would not necessarily be realised in an immediate sale or settlement of 
the instrument.  
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For cash and other liquid assets, the fair value is assumed to approximate to book value, given 
the short term nature of these instruments. For those items with a stated maturity exceeding 
twelve months, fair value is calculated using a discounted cash flow methodology.  
 
The financial instruments carried at fair value were categorized under the three levels of the Ind 
AS fair value hierarchy as follows:  
 
Level 1: Quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the Company has the ability to access. This level of the fair value hierarchy provides the 
most reliable evidence of fair value and is used to measure fair value whenever available.  
 
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).  
 
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). These inputs reflect the Company’s own assumptions about the 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability (includ ing 
assumptions about risk). These inputs are developed based on the best information available in 
the circumstances, which include the Company’s own data. The Company’s own data used to 
develop unobservable inputs is adjusted if information indicates that market participants would 
use different assumptions. 
 
Financial instruments 
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
Classification  
An entity classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value  
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit  or loss on the basis of both:  
(a) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and 
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 
 
Non-derivative financial assets 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Purchases or sales of financial assets 
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the 
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
 
Subsequent measurement  
 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

1) Debt instruments at amortised cost  
2) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)  
3) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL) 
4) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)  
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Derecognition 
 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.  

 
Impairment of financial asset 
 
Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition  of 
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:  

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, 
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at F VTOCI 
c. Lease receivables  
d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that 

result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18  
e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL 
f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL 

 
Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:  

a. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 
b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within t he scope of Ind AS 17 

 
The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right 
from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk 
exposure, the group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk 
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide 
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 

 
Non-derivative financial liabilities 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
 
The company initially recognises loans and advances, depos its, debt securities issued and 
subordinated liabilities on the date on which they are originated. All other financial instruments 
(including regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised on the trade date, 
which is the date on which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.  
 
A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not a t 
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition 
or issue.  
 
 
 
 
 



Praj HiPurity Systems Limited 
 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
In Indian Rupees million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated 
 
Financial guarantee contracts 
 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment 
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to ma ke 
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee 
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that  
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured 
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined and the amount recognised less 
cumulative amortisation. 
 
Derecognition 
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability    is dis charged or  
 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange     or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

  
Derivative financial instruments  
 
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to 
hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at 
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is 
positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

 
Offsetting of financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount  is reported in the  balance 
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is 
an intention to settle    on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 

 
Earnings per share 
 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events 
such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation 
of shares) that changes the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in 
resources.  
 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 
period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
 



PRAJ HIPURITY SYSTEMS LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity  for the period ended 31st March, 2024
(Amounts in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital
Balance as at 1 April 2022 Changes in equity 

share capital 
during
the year

Balance as at 31 
March 2023

                                                      50.000                             -                         50.000 
Balance as at 1 April 2023 Changes in equity 

share capital 
during
the year

Balance as at 31st 
March ,2024

                                                      50.000                             -                         50.000 

B. Other equity
 Particulars   Total   

Balance as at 31st Mar 2023                   157.770                     646.822               804.591 
Transition impact of IND AS 116 231.150                                  231.150 
Transfer to retained earnings  -                                               -10.038                -10.038 
Dividend Paid -250.000                                  -250.00 
Balance as at 31st March 2024                   157.770                     617.934               775.704 

 General reserve   Retained earnings   
  Reserves and surplus   
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Note 3: Property, plant and equipment and intangible asets

Particulars Right of Right of Right of Right of Computers Total
Use Asset -

Building-DLH
Use Asset -
Workshop 
Equipment

Use Asset -
Laptop

Use Asset -
Vehicle

Gross block
As at 1 April 2022 6.667                        241.242                 25.270                5.450                        15.842                -                      207.654                9.982                 4.544                 26.371                 9.609                         12.104               564.736                  12.256               12.256               576.992                   
Additions during the year -                            3.038                     -                      -                            2.191                  1.213                  8.137                    0.531                 -                     -                       -                            0.201              15.312                    -                     -                     15.312                     11.91                    

Deletions during the year -                            2.005                5.461              0.034              2.376                   -                         4.081                  13.957                    -                     -                     13.957                     

As at  31st March, 2023 6.667                        244.280                 25.270                5.450                        18.034                1.213                  213.786                5.052                 4.511                 23.995                 9.609                         8.224                  566.090                  12.256               12.256               578.347                   

Accumulated depreciation and 
amortisation

As at 1 April 2022 -                            148.214                 6.639                   3.633                          0.841                   -                        149.269                8.959                 3.089                 15.117                 9.475                         11.460               356.695                  10.091               10.091               366.786                   
Charge for the year -                            5.39                         5.124                   1.817                          5.551                   0.020                   10.611                   0.294                   0.614                   1.756                     0.026                           0.315                   31.513                    1.399                   1.399                 32.913                     
Depreciation on deletions -                            1.935                    5.460              0.034              2.30                       -                            4.081                  13.804                    -                     -                     13.804                     

As at  31st March, 2023 -                            153.600                 11.763                5.450                        6.392                  0.020                  157.945                3.793                 3.669                 14.577                 9.500                         7.694                  374.404                  11.490               11.490               385.894                   

Adjusted through reserves -                            -                            -                          -                     -                           

Net carrying value
As at  31st March, 2023 6.667                        90.680                   13.507                -                            11.642                1.193                  55.841                  1.259                 0.842                 9.418                   0.108                         0.530                  191.687                  0.766                  0.766                 192.453                   
As at 31 March 2022 6.667                        93.028                   18.631                1.817                        15.001                15.001                58.385                  1.023                 1.456                 11.254                 0.134                         0.644                  208.041                  2.165                  2.165                 210.206                   

Note 3 -A  Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP)
a) For Capital-work-in progress, following aging schedule shall be given :
CWIP aging schedule

CWIP Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Effluent & Sewage Treatment Plant 2.769 2.769
Asset Code : 140668

Project Temporarily suspended

*Total 2.769 2.769

Total Grand total

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Tangible assets Intangible assets
Freehold land Factory Building Plant and 

machinery
Office 

equipments
Vehicles Furniture and 

fixtures
Electric fittings and 

installations
Software
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Note 3: Property, plant and equipment and intangible asets

Particulars Right of Right of Right of Right of Computers Total
Use Asset -

Building-DLH
Use Asset -
Workshop 
Equipment

Use Asset -
Laptop

Use Asset -
Vehicle

Gross block
As at 1 April 2023 6.667                       244.280                 25.270               5.450                        17.969               1.213                 213.786               5.052                 4.511                 23.995                 9.609                        8.224                 566.026                  12.256               12.256               578.282                   
Additions during the year -                           5.640                     -                     1.826                        10.285               8.209                   1.613                 -                    -                      -                            0.737                 28.309                    -                     -                    28.309                     
Deletions during the year -                           -                     4.547                   -                     0.532                 -                      -                        3.301                 8.380                      -                     -                    8.380                       

As at  31st March, 2024 6.667                       249.920                 25.270               7.276                        17.969               11.498               217.448               6.665                 3.979                 23.995                 9.609                        5.660                 585.954                  12.256               12.256               598.211                   

 Accumulated depreciation and 
amortisation 

As at 1 April 2023 -                           153.600                 11.763                5.45                            6.39                     0.02                     157.945               3.793                 3.669                 14.577                 9.500                        7.694                 374.404                  11.490               11.490               385.894                   
Charge for the year -                           5.51                        5.15                     0.58                            6.01                     1.90                     11.34                     0.45                    0.48                    1.71                      0.03                            0.40                     33.565                    0.65                     0.648                 34.213                     
Depreciation on deletions -                           2.432                   -                  0.36                -                        -                            3.301                 6.094                      -                     -                    6.094                       

As at  31st March, 2024 -                           159.111                 16.912               6.034                        12.400               1.923                 166.857               4.241                 3.791                 16.288                 9.526                        4.789                 401.874                  12.139               12.139               414.013                   

Net carrying value
As at  31st March, 2024 6.667                       90.808                   8.358                 1.242                        5.568                 9.575                 50.590                 2.423                 0.188                 7.707                   0.083                        0.871                 184.080                  0.118                 0.118                 184.198                   
As at 31 March 2023 6.667                       90.680                   13.507               -                            11.642               1.193                 55.841                 1.259                 0.842                 9.418                   0.108                        0.530                 191.687                  0.766                 0.766                 192.453                   

Note 3 -A  Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP)
a) For Capital-work-in progress, following aging schedule shall be given :
CWIP aging schedule

CWIP Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Project in progress 0.678 5.169 -                     -                            5.847

Project Temporarily suspended -                           -                        -                     -                            -                     

*Total 0.678 5.169 -                     -                            5.847

CWIP Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Project 5.847 5.847

*Total 5.847 5.847

To be completed in

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Grand total
Tangible assets Intangible assets

Freehold land Factory Building Plant and 
machinery

Office 
equipments

Vehicles Furniture and 
fixtures

Electric fittings and 
installations

Software Total

b) For Capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan, following CWIP completion 
schedule shall be given**:
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Note 4: Other Non Current Financial Asset 

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Security deposits 8.995                                  7.773                                  
Unsecured, considered good

Non-current 7.530                                  6.434                                  

Bank Deposit with remaining maturity of more than 12 months -                                      26.798                                

Total 7.530                                  33.232                                

Note 5: Other assets

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
(i) Prepaid expenses 6.197                                  9.887                                  

Unsecured, considered good 6.197                                  9.887                                  

Non-current 0.873                                  0.267                                  
Currrent 5.324                                  9.620                                  

(ii) Balances with central excise, customs and VAT authorities 8.103                                  68.542                                
Unsecured, considered good 8.103                                  68.542                                

Non-current -                                      -                                      
Currrent 8.103                                  68.542                                

(iii) Advance to vendors 7.964                                  9.462                                  
Unsecured, considered good 7.964                                  9.462                                  

Non-current -                             -                             
Currrent 7.964                                  9.462                                  

(iv) Capital Advance
Unsecured, considered good

Non-current -                             -                             
Currrent -                             -                             

(iv) Advance to Staff 5.973                                  4.406                                  
Unsecured, considered good 5.973                                  4.406                                  

Non-current -                             -                             
Currrent 5.973                                  4.406                                  

(vi)  Contract in progress 54.248                                
    Unsecured, considered good

Non-current -                                      -                                      
Currrent 54.248                                -                                      

Total 82.485                                92.297                                

Non-current 0.873                                  0.267                                  
Current 81.612                                92.030                                

Note 6: Inventories 

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Raw materials 288.312                              223.543                              
Work-in-progress 174.525                              129.209                              
Packing material 0.578                                  0.814                                  
Consumables, stores and spares 6.094                                  6.142                                  
Finished goods 22.792                                0.991                                  

-                                      
Total 492.301                              360.699                              

(i) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, unless otherwise stated.
(ii) The Company follows suitable provisioning norms for writing down the value of Inventories towards slow moving and non-moving 
inventory.       

(iii) Write down of Inventories for the year Rs 13.179 - (Previous year Rs.16.632 ). Inventory values shown above are net of the write down.       
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Note 7: Investments at amortised cost

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

Deposit with Bajaj Finance Limited -                                      -                                      

Total                                         -                                           -   

Note 8:    Trade receivables

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Trade receivables 940.942                              654.875                              
Unsecured, considered good

From related parties -                                      -                                      
From others 940.942                              654.875                              

Unsecured, considered doubtful from others 39.557                                58.792                                

980.499                              713.667                              
Less: Impairment allowance (allowance for doubtful debts) 39.557                                58.792                                

Total 940.942                              654.875                              

Note 9:    Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
(i) Balances with banks
       On current accounts 31.162                                15.741                                
       Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 150.000                              222.525                              

(ii) Cash on hand 0.535                                  0.080                                  

Total 181.697                              238.346                              

Note 10:    Other Bank Balance

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

Bank Deposit with remaining maturity of less than 12 months -                                      -                                      
Bank Deposit with remaining maturity of more than 12 months
Deposit with Bajaj Finance Limited -                                      -                                      

-                                      -                                      

Non-current -                                      -                                      
Current -                                      -                                      

Note 11:    Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Other Financial Assets -                                      -                                      
   Interest accrued on deposit 0.050                                  0.798                                  
   Non-current -                                      -                                      
   Current 0.050                                  0.798                                  

Security deposits 1.465                                  1.339                                  

Other receivable 13.223                                7.325                                  

Total 14.738                                9.462                                  

Non-current -                                      -                                      
Current 14.738                                9.462                                  

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any 
trade or  other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

For terms and conditions relating to related party trade receivables, refer note 32.

Trade receivables are non interest bearing and generally on credit terms ranging from 120 to 180 days.
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Note 12: Equity share capital

Particulars
Authorised shares
5 (31 March 2024: 5 ; 1 April 2023: 5) equity shares of INR 10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
5 (31 March 2024: 5 ; 1 April 2023: 5) equity shares of INR 10 each

Total

a) Terms/rights  attached to equity shares

b) Reconciliation of share capital

Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning of the period              5.000         50.000                    5.000         50.000 
Add: Additions during the period

Outstanding at the end of the period              5.000         50.000                    5.000         50.000 

c) Shares held by holding / ultimate holding Company and / or their subsidiaries / associates

Entire share capital of the Company is held by Praj Industries Limited (Holding company)

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Number % holding Number % holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
Holding Company (Praj Industries Limited)              5.000 100%                    5.000 100%

Particulars

Number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and 
shares bought back

31st Mar 2024

31st Mar 2024

                                        -   

31st Mar 2024

50.000                                

50.000

50.000

31st Mar 2024

31st Mar 2023

31st Mar 2023

                                               -   

31st Mar 2023

50.000                                       

50.000

50.000

31st Mar 2023

Particulars

Particulars

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of the equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. During the year ended 31 March 2024, no dividend was declared and paid to equity
shareholders In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company
after distributing all preferential amounts.

e) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of 
five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
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Note 13: Other equity

Particulars
31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

(i) General reserve 157.770                              157.770                              

(ii) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
At the beginning of the period 646.822                              677.266                              
Transition impact of IND AS 116 -                                     -                                     
Total comprehensive income as per Statement of Profit and Loss 221.112                              169.556                              
Dividend Paid -250.000                            -200.000                            

At the end of the period 617.935                              646.822                              

Total 775.705                              804.592                              

Nature & Purpose of Reserve

Note 14: Provisions

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Provision for employee benefits
(i) Provision for leave encashment 18.648                                16.230                                

Non-current 16.429                                14.457                                
Currrent 2.219                                  1.773                                  

(ii) Provision for gratuity 29.003                                19.009                                

Non-current -                                     -                                     
Currrent 29.003                                19.009                                

Total 47.651                                35.239                                

Non-current 16.429                                14.457                                
Current 31.222                                20.782                                

Note 15: Trade payables

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

To related parties 0.920                                  1.822                                  

To others
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSMED) 146.656                              117.193                              
Total outstanding dues to other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 538.905                              261.532                              

Total 686.481                              380.547                              

Trade Payable are generally on credit terms ranging from 60 to 90 days.

Micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have been 
identified by the Company on the basis of the information available with the Company and the auditors have relied on the same. Accordingly, 
there is no undisputed amount overdue as on March 31, 2024, to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises on account of principal or interest.

a) General reserve is created out of profits earned by the Company by way of transfer from surplus in the statement of profit and loss.  As 
General reserve is created by transfer on one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included 
in the General reserve will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss

b) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to General reserve and 
payment of dividend.
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Note 16:    Other financial liabilities

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
(i) Payables for purchases of property, plant and equipment

Non-current -                                     -                                     
Currrent -                                     -                                     

(ii) Other financial liabilities 54.293                                27.743                                

Employee Benefits Payable
Non-current -                                     -                                     
Currrent 0.931                                  0.997                                  

Other Payable 53.362                                26.746                                

Non-current 0.500                                  0.400                                  
Current 52.862                                26.346                                

(iii) Corporate guarantee payable

Non-current -                                     -                                     
Currrent -                                     -                                     

(iv) Accrued expenses 54.293                                27.743                                

Non-current -                                     -                                     
Currrent -                                     -                                     

Total 54.293                                27.743                                

Non-current 0.500                                  0.400                                  
Current 53.793                                27.343                                

Note 17: Other current liabilities 

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
(i) Advances received from customers 284.102                              257.187                              

Non-current -                                     -                                     
Currrent 284.102                              257.187                              

(ii) Statutory Dues Payable 3.911                                  2.710                                  

Non-current -                                     -                                     

Currrent 3.911                                  2.710                                  

Total 288.013                              259.897                              

Non-current -                                     -                                     
Current 288.013                              259.897                              
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Note 18: Revenue from operations

Particulars
 31st Mar 2024  31st Mar 2023 

Sale of products and projects 2,132.010                           1,813.375                           
Sale of services 477.444                              142.651                              
Export service 31.708                               18.467                               
Export sales 326.252                              449.983                              
Contracts in progress 54.248                               -                                     

Total 3,021.662                           2,424.476                           

Note 19: Other income

Particulars
 31st Mar 2024  31st Mar 2023 

Interest income 6.674                                 7.939                                 

Income calculated using effective interest rate method -                                     -                                     

Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.216                                 -                                     

Sundry balances written back -0.000                                0.431                                 

Foreign exchange gain (net) 3.174                                 -                                     

Miscellaneous income 1.180                                 1.696                                 

Total 11.244                               10.066                               

Note 20: Cost of  materials consumed

Particulars  31st Mar 2024  31st Mar 2023 

Raw material consumed 1,927.071                           1,363.537                           

Total 1,927.071                           1,363.537                           

Note 21: Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars  31st Mar 2024  31st Mar 2023 

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods 22.792                               0.991                                 

Work-in-progress 174.525                              129.209                              
197.317                              130.200                              

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished goods 0.991                                 17.286                               

Work-in-progress 129.209                         180.531                         
130.200                              197.817                              

(Increase) / decrease in inventories -67.117                              67.617                               

Note 22: Employee benefits expense

Particulars  31st Mar 2024  31st Mar 2023 

Salaries, wages and bonus 262.986                              204.776                              

Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer note 33) 5.549                                 5.066                                 

Gratuity expense (Refer note 35) 2.331                                 2.290                                 

Staff welfare 13.189                               14.517                               

Total 284.055                              226.649                              

Note 23: Finance costs

Particulars  31st Mar 2024  31st Mar 2023 

Interest on borrowings 4.244                                 3.003                                 

Net interest cost on net defined benefit obligations 1.288                                 1.260                                 

Other (Interest on Delayed Payment) -                                     0.453                                 

Interest on Lease Liability 2.927                                 2.756                                 

Total 8.459                                 7.472                                 
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Note 24: Other expenses

Particulars  31st Mar 2024  31st Mar 2023 

Consumption of Stores & spares 27.118                               24.797                               

Site expenses and labour charges 249.905                              190.638                              

Freight and transport 11.546                               24.452                               

Factory expenses 7.640                                 6.600                                 

Bank charges 5.198                                 4.069                                 

Testing charges 2.590                                 4.414                                 

Duties and taxes 6.565                                 -0.163                                

Bad Debts 20.471                               5.375                                 

Provision for doubtful debts -19.235                              22.997                               

Sundry balances written off 0.993                                 0.125                                 

Commission and brokerage 0.735                                 23.211                               

Travelling and conveyance 72.786                               61.981                               

Professional consultancy charges 43.257                               26.492                               

Insurance 11.074                               11.321                               

Rent 4.739                                 3.104                                 

Royalty Fees 5.025                                 4.170                                 

Power and fuel 5.743                                 3.842                                 

Communication expenses 1.754                                 1.910                                 

Business promotion expenses 9.238                                 7.984                                 

Staff Expense -other 45.037                               48.898                               

Repairs and maintenance - Plant and machinery 4.944                                 5.545                                 

Repairs and maintenance - Others 5.234                                 9.455                                 

Auditor's remuneration - Audit service 1.190                                 1.035                                 

Auditor's remuneration - Other services 0.048                                 0.017                                 

Rates and taxes 0.846                                 0.691                                 

Foreign Exchange fluctuation loss -                                     6.404                                 

Corporate social responsibility expenses 4.214                                 1.929                                 

Loss on Sale of Asset 0.692                                 1.577                                 

Miscellaneous expenses 10.127                               5.103                                 

Total 539.474                              507.973                              

Note 25:    Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Particulars  31st Mar 2024  31st Mar 2023 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements gains and losses on post-employment benefit plans 10.038                               0.053                                 

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss
Tax on remeasurements gains and losses on post-employment benefit 
plans -                                     -                                     
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Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
26 Income tax

A Statement of profit and loss:
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 75.123                           64.700                             
Tax relating to earlier periods 1.635                             -0.290                              

Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences -1.157                            -5.638                              
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 75.601                           58.772                             

B Statement of other comprehensive income:
Deferred tax:
Remeasurements gains and losses on post employment benefits -                                 -                                   
Income tax expense reported in the statement of other comprehensive income -                                 -                                   

C Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Accounting profit before tax 296.711                         228.381                           
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (25.17%) 74.676                           57.479                             

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 1.635                             -0.290                              

Adjustments in respect excess tax paid during the year

Less: Tax effect of:
i Tax rate difference on book profit as per  Minimum Alternate Tax -                                 -                                   
ii Tax effect on exempt income dividend -                                 -                                   
iii Tax effect of reversal of Deffered Tax on adjustment to Opening Reserve in respect

of IND AS 115
-                                 -                                   

iv Additional Allowances for tax purpose                                    -                                        -   

Add: Tax effect of
i Tax liability on IND AS adjustment to Retained earnings
ii Tax liability on permanent Difference 14A Disallowance -                                 -                                   
iii Effect on deduction claimed in MAT for Doubtful debt provision written back -                                 -                                   
iv Effect on deduction claimed in MAT for Provision for Impairment of Investment -                                 -                                   

v Effect on deduction claimed in MAT for Expenditure debited to Reserves-ESOP
expenses

-                                 -                                   

vi Deferred Tax expenses accounted as no effect of Timing differences on MAT
liability

-1.895                            0.888                               

vii Expenses not allowed for tax purpose (including Exceptional Item) 1.186                             0.695                               

Total 75.601                           58.772                             
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 75.601                           58.772                             



PRAJ HIPURITY SYSTEMS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(All amounts are in Indian rupees million unless otherwise stated)

D Deferred tax

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 9.956                             14.797                             
Gratuity 7.299                             4.784                               
Leave encashment 4.693                             4.085                               
Bonus 2.496                             -                                   
Long term capital losses
Carry forward business loss -                                 -                                   
Compensated absences
Others -                                 -                                   
Lease Liability 7.135                             7.524                               
IND AS 115 Deferred Tax reversal -                                 -                                   

Total 31.579                           31.190                             
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets -8.423                            -9.190                              
Amortisation of prepaid lease rentals / others

Total -8.423                            -9.190                              
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) 23.156                           22.000                             
Deferred tax expense/(income)
- Recognised in the statement of profit and loss -1.157                            -5.638                              
- Recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income -                                 -                                   
- Recognised in opening reserve under statement of changes in equity -                                 -                                   

Deferred tax relates to the following: 
Deferred tax asset / (liability)
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27 Note 27: Payment to Statutory Auditor (for audit services exclusive of service tax/ GST)

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Audit Fees 1.190                                      1.035                                      
In other Capacity 0.091                                      0.079                                      
Reimbursement of Expense 0.019                                      0.016                                      

28

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 146.656                                  117.193                                  

Amount of Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier as the end of the year -                                         -                                         

Amount of interest paid under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year.

-                                         -                                         

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (where the 
principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid).

-                                         -                                         

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of year. -                                         -                                         

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year. -                                         -                                         

29 Note 29: Contingent liabilities

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Contingent liabilities
Disputed demands in appeal towards Income Tax 2.894                                      -                                         

30 Note 30: Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure

Amount spent on Amounts paid
Construction/acquisition of asset Nil
On other purposes covered under Schedule VII to Companies Act, 2013 4.214*

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
a) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 4.029                                      1.922                                      
b) Amount of expenditure incurred 4.214                                      1.929                                      
c) Shortfall at the end of the year -                                         -                                         
d) Total of previous years shortfall -                                         -                                         

31 Note 31: Segment reporting

b) Secondary segment information

Particulars Within India Outside India

Revenue based on location of customers                                2,663.701                                   357.959 

Total                                  3,021.66 

Note 28: Dues to micro and small enterprises - As per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED’ Act)

This information has been determined to the extent such parties  have been identified on the basis of information  available with the company

a) The business activities of the Company from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses; whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available involve predominantly one reportable operating segment i.e. Engineering goods for pharmaceuticals industries.

The Company was required to spend INR 4.029 as expenditure on CSR as per requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year, the Company has 
incurred CSR expenses of INR 4.214 included in other expenses (Refer Note 24) as follows:
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32 Note 32: Related party transactions

a) Parties which are members of the same group
(i) Holding company
Praj Industries Limited

(ii) Fellow Subsidiaries
 Praj Engineering & Infra Limited
 Praj Far East Co. Limited
 Praj Americas Inc.
 Praj GenX Limited
 Praj Far East (Philippines) Inc

b) Key management personnel and their close family members
Dr. Pramod Madhukar Chaudhari Chairman
Mr. Sivaramakrishnan Srinivasan Iyer Independent Director
Mr. Sandeep Rajnikant Mehta Independent Director
Mrs. Mrunalini Harish Joshi Independent Director (up to 10th August, 2023)
Dr. Shridhar Bhalchandra Shukla Independent Director
Mr. Shishir Joshipura Director
Mr. Vikram Shrirang Pandit Director
Mr. Mihir Mehta Director
Mr. Anant Bavare Company Secretary (up to 31st October, 2023)

c) Transactions and balances with related parties have been set out below:

Transactions with related parties and year end balances
Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Praj Industries Limited
Sale of products 83.754                                    4.031                                      
Sale of services 16.298                                    -                                         
ICD Interest 1.154                                      -                                         
Expenses reimbursed to holding company
Purchase of products 1.840                                      5.142                                      
Receipt of services 5.574                                      4.975                                      
Praj Foundation 4.214                                      1.929                                      
Expenses incurred and reimbursed by holding company

Professional Fees paid to Non Executive Director
Sandeep Mehta 0.350                                      0.350                                      
Vikram Pandit 0.350                                      0.350                                      

Director Remuneration
Mihir Mehta 8.092                                      3.543                                      

Praj Industries Limited
Receivable -                                         2.974                                      
Payable 0.920                                      1.822                                      

Dividend Paid 250.000                                  200.000                                  

Sandeep Mehta
Payable -                                         -                                         

Vikram Pandit
Payable -                                         -                                         
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33 Note 33: Leases

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Depreciation for right-of-use asset                                     13.645                                     12.512 
Interese expense on lease liabilities                                       2.927                                       2.756 
Expenses relating to short-term / low value leases                                       4.739                                       3.104 
Total Cash outhflow for leases                                     21.233                                     17.835 
Carrying amount of right-of-use asset                                     24.742                                     26.342 
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities:
- Upto 180 days                                       7.785                                       5.571 
- 180 to 365 days                                       7.350                                       6.161 
- 1 year to 3 years                                     10.716                                     17.594 
- More than 3 years                                       2.498                                       0.545 

34 Note 34: Earnings per share

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per share
Weighted average number of basic equity shares                                       5.000                                       5.000 

Weighted average number of diluted equity shares                                       5.000                                       5.000 

Computation of basic and diluted earnings per share
Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders                                   231.150                                   169.609 

Basic earnings per equity share of INR 10 each                                     46.230                                     33.922 
Diluted earnings per equity share of INR 10 each                                     46.230                                     33.922 

35 Note 35: Employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plans

b) Defined benefit plan

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 21.473                                    19.741                                    
Interest cost 1.546                                      1.375                                      
Past service cost -                                         -                                         
Current service cost 2.209                                      2.176                                      
Benefits paid (1.725)                                    (1.824)                                    
Remeasurements on obligation - (gain) / loss 10.048                                    0.005                                      
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 33.552                                    21.473                                    

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company is required to provide post-employment benefit to its employees in the form of gratuity.
The Company has maintained a fund with the Life Insurance Corporation of India to meet its gratuity obligations. In accordance with the Standard, the
disclosures relating to the Company’s gratuity plan are provided below:

The Company has recognised INR 5.549 MN (31 March 2023: INR 5.066 MN) towards post-employment defined contribution plans comprising of provident
and superannuation fund in the statement of profit and loss.

The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as follows:
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Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 2.464                                      0.705                                      
Interest income 0.258                                      0.117                                      
Contributions 1.939                                      2.773                                      
Benefits paid -                                         (0.968)                                    
Mortality Charges and Taxes (0.122)                                    (0.113)                                    
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in interest income - gain / (loss) 0.011                                     (0.051)                                    
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period 4.549                                      2.464                                      
Actual return on plan assets 0.268                                      0.067                                      

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 33.552                                    21.473                                    
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period 4.549                                      2.464                                      
Surplus / (deficit) (29.002)                                  (19.009)                                  

Particulars
31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

Current service cost 2.209                                      2.176                                      
Past service cost -                                         -                                         
Net interest (income) / expense 1.288                                      1.257                                      
Net periodic benefit cost recognised in the statement of profit and loss at the end of the 
period

3.498                                      3.433                                      

Particulars
31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

Remeasurement for the year - obligation (gain) / loss 10.048                                   0.005                                     
Remeasurement for the year - plan assets (gain) / loss -0.011                                    0.051                                      
Total remeasurements cost / (credit ) for the year 10.038                                   0.056                                     

Net interest (income) / expense recognised in statement of profit and loss are as follows:
Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

Interest (income) / expense - obligation 1.546                                      1.375                                      
Interest (income) / expense - plan assets (0.258)                                    (0.117)                                    
Net interest (income) / expense for the year 1.288                                      1.257                                      

Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Government of India securities 0% 0%
High quality corporate bonds 0% 0%
Equity shares of listed companies 0% 0%
Property 0% 0%
Special deposit scheme 0% 0%
Funds managed by insurer 100% 100%
Others 0% 0%

Total 100% 100%

The changes in the fair value of planned assets representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as follows:

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss are as follows:

Amounts recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) are as follows:

The broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as follows:
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Particulars 31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
Discount rate 7.20% 7.50%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 7% 5%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.50% 7.30%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (in years) 7.92* 13.91*
Withdrawal rate
Age upto 30 years 9% 2%
Age 31 - 40 years 9% 2%
Age 41 - 50 years 9% 2%
Age above 50 years 9% 2%
* It is actuarially calculated term of the plan using probabilities of death, withdrawal and retirement.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is shown as follows:

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
6.20% 35.946 23.895
8.20% 31.410 19.374

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
6.00% 31.919                                    19.636                                    
8.00% 35.302                                    23.420                                    

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

8.00% 33.430                                    20.961                                    
10.00% 33.664                                    21.939                                    

d) Risk Exposure And Asset Liability Matching

i) Liability Risks

a) Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk-

b) Discount Rate Risk-

c) Future Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk-

ii) Asset Risk-

Salary increment rate

Principal actuarial assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are as follows:

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the present value of obligation. 
a) Impact of change in discount rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point

The company has adopted for a traditional fund wherein all assets are invested primarily in risk averse markets. The company has no control over the 
management of funds but this option provides a high level of safety  for the total corpus. A single account is maintained for both the investment and claim 
settlement and hence 100% liquidity is ensured. Also interest rate and inflation risk are taken care of.

Provision of a defined benefit scheme process certain risks, some of which are detailed hereunder, as companies take on uncertain long term obligations to make 
future benefit payments.

Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined benefit liabilities, the 
company is successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. Hence companies are encouraged to adopt asset-liability 
management.

Variation in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in practise can have a significant impact on the defined 
benefit liabilities.

Since price inflation and salary growth rate linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will often result in higher future 
defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected salary increases provided at management's discretion may lead 
to uncertainities in estimating  this increasing risk.

All plan assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by a public sector insurer viz LIC of India. LIC has a sovereign guarantee and has been providing 
consistent and competitive returns over the years.

c) Impact of change in withdrawal rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point
Withdrawal rate

Discount rate

b) Impact of change in salary increase rate when base assumption is decreased / increased by 100 basis point
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36 Note 36: Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Particulars
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

A. Financial asset
i. Measured at amortised cost 
Security deposits 8.995                       7.773                       8.995                      7.773                               

Trade receivables * 940.942                   654.875                   940.942                  654.875                           

Cash and cash equivalent * 181.697                   238.346                   181.697                  238.346                           

Investment in Deposit* -                           -                           -                          -                                   

ii. Measured at fair value through profit and
loss

Forward exchange contracts {Asset/(Liability)} -                           -                           -                          -                                   

B. Financial liability
i. Measured at amortised cost 
Borrowings -                           -                           -                          -                                   

Trade payables * 686.481                   380.547                   686.481                  380.547                           

Other financial liabilities 54.293                     27.743                     54.293                    27.743                             

  The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

PRAJ HIPURITY SYSTEMS LIMITED
Fair value hierarchy

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2024:

Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

a) Financial assets measured at fair value
Forward exchange contracts {Asset/(Liability)} -                           

b) Assets for which fair values are disclosed 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
 Security deposits 8.995                        Discounted cash flows 

c) Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Borrowings -                           

Other financial liabilities 54.293                     

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments that are recognised in 
the financial statements 

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data 
available. In addition, the Company  internally reviews valuations, including independent price validation for certain instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

Carrying value Fair value

* The company has not disclosed the fair values of trade payables, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents because their carrying 
amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.  

Valuation technique 
used

Fair value measurement using

 The fair value is 
determined using quoted 
forward exchange rates 
at the reporting date and 
present value 
calculations based on 
high credit quality yield 
curves in the respective 
currencies. 

Inputs used 

 Quoted forward 
exchange rates, high 
credit quality yield 
curves. 

 Forecast cash 
flows, discount rate, 
maturity date etc. 

i. Fair value of security deposit (non-current) is estimated using a discounted cashflow model. The valuation requires management to make 
certain assumptions about interest rates, maturity period, credit risk, forecasted cash flows etc.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company's assets and liabilities grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as described in significant 
accounting policies - Note 2. Further, table describes the valuation techniques used, key inputs to valuations and quantitative information about significant 
unobservable inputs for fair value measurements. 

 Discounted cash flows  Forecast cash 
flows, discount rate, 
maturity date etc. 



Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2023:

Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

a) Financial assets measured at fair value
Forward exchange contracts {Asset/(Liability)} -                           

b) Assets for which fair values are disclosed 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
 Security deposits                        7.773  Discounted cash flows 

c) Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Borrowings -                            Discounted cash flows 

Other financial liabilities 27.743                     

 The fair value is 
determined using quoted 
forward exchange rates 
at the reporting date and 
present value 
calculations based on 
high credit quality yield 
curves in the respective 
currencies. 

 Quoted forward 
exchange rates, high 
credit quality yield 
curves. 

Inputs used Fair value measurement using Valuation technique 
used

During the year ended 31 March 2024 & 31 March 2023  there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers into and out 
of level 3 fair value measurement.

Fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade payables approximates their carrying value. Accordingly, fair value hierarchy disclosures are 
not applicable

 Forecast cash 
flows, discount rate, 
maturity date etc. 

 Forecast cash 
flows, discount rate, 
maturity date etc. 
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37 Note 37: Financial risk management policy and objectives

i) Market risk 

a) Foreign currency risk 

The key objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total equity to
uphold investor, creditor, and customer confidence and to ensure future development of its business. The Company is focused on maintaining a
strong equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required without impacting
the risk profile of the Company.

Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance Company's operations (short term) and to provide guarantees to support its operations. Company’s
principal financial assets include investments, foreign exchange forward contracts, security deposit, trade and other receivables, and cash and
cash equivalents,  that derive directly from its operations.
 
Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, trade and other payables, investments, foreign exchange forward contracts, security
deposit, advances to subsidiaries,  trade and other receivables, deposits with banks.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. The sensitivity of the relevant
income statement item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis
that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt, proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all
constant at 31 March 2024

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post retirement obligations;
provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

Company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks, including effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rate and interest rate.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rate. Company transacts business in local currency INR and in different foreign currencies. The Company manages its foreign currency
risk by hedging transactions that are expected to occur within a maximum 6 month period for hedges of forecasted sales and purchases.

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of
the hedged exposure. For hedges of forecast transactions the derivatives cover the period of exposure from the point the cash flows of the
transactions are forecasted up to the point of settlement of the resulting receivable or payable that is denominated in the foreign currency.
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Foreign currency sensitivity

Particulars Currency
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Financial assets
Trade receivables EUR 0.002 0.916 0.213 74.753

USD 2.163 2.384 177.265 195.184

Bank EUR -                      -                   -                 -                       
USD -                      -                   -                 -                       

Cash EUR 0.002                  -                   0.162             -                       
USD 0.004                  -                   0.303             -                       
SGD 0.000                  0.000               0.000             0.000                    
AED 0.000                  0.000               0.008             0.006                    
DZD 0.003                  -                   0.002             -                       
JOD 0.000                  0.000               0.035             0.035                    
EGP 0.001                  -                   0.001             -                       
UZS -                      0.377               -                 0.003                    
CZK -                      0.000               -                 0.000                    
BDT -                      0.014               -                 0.011                    

Financial liabilities
Trade payables EUR 0.273                  0.001               24.676           0.067                    

GBP -                      -                   -                 -                       
USD 0.590                  0.164               49.391           13.654                  

PCFC USD -                      -                   -                 -                       

Buyer's credit USD -                      -                   -                 -                       

Currency wise net exposure (liabilities - assets)
Particulars 

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
USD 1.576                  2.220 128.176         181.530                
EUR -0.269                 0.916 -24.302          74.686                  
GBP -                      -                   -                 -                       

Sensitivity analysis 
Currency Sensitivity %

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
USD 128.176              181.530 +5% 128.226                9.076                                 

-5% -6.409                  -9.076                                
EUR -24.302               74.686 +5% -1.215                  3.734                                 

-5% 1.215                    -3.734                                
GBP -                      -                   -                       -                                     

b) Interest rate risk

Impact on Profit Before Tax 

Amount in INR

Amount in INR

Amount in foreign currency

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates.
Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.
The company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in 
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss. 

Amount in INR

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR and GBP exchange rates, with all other variables 
held constant.

Amount in foreign currency
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ii) Credit risk

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 #REF!
- Less than 90 days 745.189      453.282              305.566                
- above 90 days 195.753      201.593              180.313                
Total 940.942      654.875              485.880                

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. 
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including 
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer 
credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are 
defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are 
generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance. Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on 120 days 
to 180 days credit term. The Company has no concentration of risk as customer base in widely distributed both economically and geographically. 

The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date that were not impaired are as follows :

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor
receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical
data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 32. The
Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its
customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.
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b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

iii) Liquidity risk

The table summarises the maturity profile of Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments 

ii) Credit risk Carrying 
amount 

On demand Less than 
6 months 

Total

Interest bearing borrowings -                      -                   -                 -                       
Trade payables 686.481              -                   686.481         686.481                
Other financial liabilities 54.293                -                   54.293           54.293                  

Particulars Carrying 
amount 

On demand Less than 
6 months 

Total

Interest bearing borrowings -                      -                   -                 -                       
Trade payables 380.547              -                   380.547         380.547                
Other financial liabilities 27.743                -                   27.743           27.743                  

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash flow and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses. Company's objective is to, at all time maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements.
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing
including overdraft, debt from domestic and international banks at optimised cost. Company enjoys strong access to domestic and international
capital market across debt, equity and hybrids.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with Company’s
policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Company
monitors rating, credit spreads and financial strength of its counter parties. Company monitors ratings, credit spread and financial strength of its
counter parties. Based on ongoing assessment Company adjust it's exposure to various counterparties.
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Note 38: Capital management

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Borrowings -                            -                       
Trade payables 686.481                     380.547               
Other financial liabilities 53.793                       27.343                 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 181.697                     238.346               
Net debt 558.577                     169.544               
Equity 825.705                     854.592               
Capital and net debt 1,384.282                  1,024.135            
Gearing ratio 40% 17%

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity
reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, Company may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. Company monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes
within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents,
excluding discontinued operations.



PRAJ HIPURITY SYSTEMS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Amounts in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Note 39: Trade Receivable

FY 23-24

Particulars 6 months -1  Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
Due Not Due

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered 
good 425.862           410.791          97.769                      2.267            1.094        3.159                         940.942          

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit 
impaired -                   -                  2.031                        2.117            1.003        34.406                       39.557            

Total
425.862           410.791          99.800                      4.384            2.097        37.565                       980.499          

FY 22-23

Particulars 6 months -1  Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
Due Not Due

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered 
good 487.775           49.489            107.985                    0.533            0.087        9.007                         654.875          

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit 
impaired -                   -                  5.363                        0.622            1.887        50.919                       58.792            

Total
487.775           49.489            113.348                    1.155            1.974        59.926                       713.667          

Less than 6 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
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Note 40: Trade Payable

Particulars 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
Due Not Due

(i)MSME                    2.352 144.303                 -                    -               -                          146.656         
(ii)Other                127.823 412.002                  -                    -               -                          539.825         
(iii)Disputed Dues – MSME -                       -                         -                    -               -                          -                 
(iv)Disputed Dues – Other -                       -                         -                    -               -                          -                 
(v)Unbilled Dues  -                       -                         -                    -               -                          -                 

Total 130.175               556.305                 -                    -               -                          686.481         

Particulars 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
Due Not Due

(i)MSME                    7.118 110.075                 -                    -               -                          117.193         
(ii)Other                  35.133 228.221                 -                    -               -                          263.354         
(iii)Disputed Dues – MSME -                         -                    -               -                          -                 
(iv)Disputed Dues – Other -                         -                    -               -                          -                 
(v)Unbilled Dues  -                         -                    -               -                          -                 

Total 42.251                 338.296                 -                    -               -                          380.547         

31st March 2023
Less than 1 year

31st March 2024
Less than 1 year
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Note 41 : Analytical Ratios

Sr. 
No.

Ratio
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 % Variance

Reason for Variance

1 Current ratio 1.59                                       1.89                                 -15.77% N.A.

2 Debt-equity ratio NA NA N.A.

3 Debt service coverage ratio
21.18                                     18.24                               16.11% N.A.

4 Return on equity ratio 27.51% 19.50% 41.10% There is favourable change in 
these ratios on account of increase 
in revenue from operations during 
the year.

5 Inventory turnover ratio 7.08                                       6.36                                 11.48% N.A.

6 Trade receivables turnover ratio 3.80                                       3.73                                 1.99% N.A.

7 Trade payables turnover ratio 2.12                                       2.45                                 -13.26% N.A.

8 Net capital turnover ratio 4.75                                       3.74                                 27.21% Improved ratio is on account of 
higher revenue from operations 
compared to increase in average 
working capital
employed.

9 Net profit ratio 7.65% 7.00% 9.35% N.A.

10 Return on capital employed 38.19% 27.61% 38.30% Improved ratio is on account of 
higher revenue from operations 

11 Return on investment
i. Mutual Funds
ii. Bonds

iii. Fixed Deposits

4.43% 3.18% -31.52% There is favourable change in ratio 
due to decrease in interest 
received on Fixed Deposits
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Note 42 - Other Disclosures

i) Details of Benami Property 
The Company does not own any benami property neither any proceedings are initiated or pending against the Company under the Prohibition of 
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988. 

ii) Borrowings secured against current assets 

Though the Company does not have any fund based borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, it has 
filed quarterly returns or statements of current assets with banks or financial institutions and the same are in agreement with the books of account 
read with notes given in the quarterly returns or statements. 

iii) Wilful Defaulter 
The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

iv) Relationship with Struck off Companies 

As per the information available with the Company, the Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 
of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

v) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium 

The Company does not have any borrowings. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) nor has it received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party). 

vi) Details of Crypto-Currency or Virtual Currency 
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto-Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
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Note 43- Audit Trail

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification, provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, for 
the financial year commencing April 1, 2023, every company which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, 
shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit 
log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail 
cannot be disabled. The interpretation and guidance on what level edit log and audit trail needs to be maintained evolved during the 
year and continues to evolve.

In the Company, the audit trail is enabled at an application level for all the tables and fields for maintenance of books of accounts 
and relevant transactions. However, the global standard ERP used by the Company has not been enabled with the feature of audit 
trail log at the database layer to log direct transactional changes, due to present design of ERP.
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